
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 30 September 2019

TIME: 6.00 pm (Briefing for Panel Members at 5.30pm)

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Business in Salford, (a) Overview of the Business Base - key 
data and headlines, and (b) Results & Highlights from 2018-19 
Business Support Activity (To follow). 

(Pages 1 - 14)

4  Exclusion of the Public. 

5  Part 2 - Closed to the Public. 

6  Urban Vision - Overview of the Business Continuity Contract, 
Budget Planning and Workforce Considerations. 

(Pages 15 - 40)

7  Re-admission of the Public. 

8  Minutes of proceedings. (Pages 41 - 48)

9  Draft Workplan. (Pages 49 - 50)

10  Items for information: 

10a Tower Block Safety Update Note. (Pages 51 - 52)

10b Response to issues raised by Mr. Langton (Pages 53 - 56)

11  Any other business. 

12  Date and Time of Next Meeting - Monday 28 October 2019, 

Public Document Pack



6.00pm (Briefing for Panel Members at 5.30pm) 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk



Page 1 of 13

CITY OF SALFORD BUSINESS BASE OVERVIEW 2019

1. HEADLINES CITYWIDE

 There are currently almost 12,000 businesses located in Salford, providing around 130,000 jobs, 
making Salford the 4th largest economy in Greater Manchester (GM) measured by business and £ 
Gross Value Added (GVA), and the 3rd largest for employment (joint with Stockport). (tables 1, 2, 
14)

 Salford has sector diversity with a mixed economy but also increasing specialisation, particularly 
in higher value, more productive sectors. (tables 3, 4)

 Salford’s growth trajectory: 
o Salford’s economy grew by £750m in the last decade - GVA reaching £6.5bn in 2018, 

representing the 3rd highest growth in GM over the period. (table 14)  
o Productivity growth in Salford in recent years has been exceptional - up 12%, at 

£48,300 per job. Only Trafford in GM has a more productive business base. Salford 
has a relatively large number of companies with a high turnover which is a driver of 
the city’s productivity. (tables 15, 13) 

o Between 2010 and 2018 the city’s business base grew by over 4,000 businesses - 
growth of over 50%, the second largest growth in GM after Manchester. (table 1)

o The two years 2016 – 2018 showed a significant increase in the number of 
businesses - over 2,000, +23%. (table 1)

o Growth in the business base has been supported by strong growth in business start-
ups, although resident self-employment rates are below the GM average which may 
indicate that residents are not taking advantage of Salford’s growth and starting 
businesses as much as they could. (tables 5, 6) 

o Business failures have been higher than average but the gap between start-ups and 
failures has improved. (tables 7, 8) 

o Business survival rates are comparatively weak – Salford never ranking above 6th in 
GM. However they have been on an upward trend and have closed the gap with GM. 
(tables 9, 10, 11) 

o Business growth since 2010 has generated an additional 12,000 jobs in the city, 10% 
growth - the 4th highest in GM. (table 2) 

o Overall employment growth has been below the GM average of 12.7% and the 
quantity of employment in the city could be higher given Salford’s locational 
advantages, population growth, and overall economic strengths. (table 2) 

o The highest employment growth has been in the digital, media and creative sector, 
+5,500 jobs (2009-17). (table 4)

 The level of private investment coming into the city supporting development is at an all-time 
high, and whilst much of this is directed into residential and related infrastructure development, 
there is substantial office development in the pipeline which is critical for continued growth.  

 Also critical to creating quality employment opportunities will be growing the capacity of 
Salford’s industrial economy - including the realisation of Port Salford, capitalising on the digital 
cluster at MediaCityUK and the Quays, and other innovation assets located within Salford’s 
innovation triangle (University of Salford, Crescent Masterplan, Salford Royal etc).

Ways to increase employment particularly at the quality end, will include:

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 13

 Targeting support into growth locations*, assets and clusters as part of Salford’s contribution 
to GM industrial strategy (including utilising the Growth Company, University and other 
business support providers)

 Attracting more inward investment with a more strategic approach building on assets and 
opportunities in the city and its growth locations.

 Increasing quality Grade A and quality secondary commercial property supply – again in 
locations where there is market demand and land supply.

 Supporting sustainable business start-ups and existing companies (including developing a 
response to survival rates/closures). 

 Protecting employment land supply through strategic approaches and master planning, but also 
not artificially constraining residential development.

 Encouraging local benefit and inclusive growth for example through use of local supply chains 
and creation of employment and training opportunities in growth sectors.

* MediaCityUK and the Quays, City Centre Salford and the GM Western Gateway

2. BUSINESS BASE OVERVIEW

2.1 Total businesses 

Table 1: Total business units

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Change 10-
18

% 
change 
10-18

Bolton 9,250 9,090 9,100 8,910 9,320 9,955 10,325 10,700 11,055 1,805 19.5

Bury 6,350 6,310 6,380 6,395 6,635 7,315 7,655 8,945 9,640 3,290 51.8

Manchester 17,360 17,465 18,400 18,870 20,170 22,170 23,840 27,460 28,970 11,610 66.9

Oldham 6,570 6,450 6,560 6,415 6,610 7,095 7,360 8,090 8,395 1,825 27.8

Rochdale 6,415 6,240 6,425 6,335 6,400 6,905 7,260 7,795 9,365 2,950 46

Salford 7,690 7,575 7,930 8,285 8,770 9,400 9,630 10,515 11,875 4,185 54.4

Stockport 11,720 11,395 11,665 11,535 11,835 12,645 12,990 13,415 13,285 1,565 13.4

Tameside 6,240 6,085 6,255 6,205 6,425 6,970 7,190 7,435 7,410 1,170 18.8

Trafford 10,935 10,910 11,255 11,690 12,165 12,815 13,300 13,805 13,325 2,390 21.9

Wigan 9,075 8,830 9,010 8,950 9,195 9,965 10,285 10,565 10,400 1,325 14.6

 GM 91,600 90,345 92,975 93,575 97,520 105,235 109,840 118,720 123,720 32,120 35.1

2.2 Total employment

 Salford contributes the third largest number of jobs to the GM economy (along with Stockport), 
and has seen the fourth largest % increase in jobs between 2010 - 17.

 Salford lost a considerable amount of employment following the financial crash of 2008 but the 
city has recovered well and has reached pre-recession levels of employment – with 131,000 jobs. 

 Between 2015 – 17 employment growth spiked, with the city seeing the highest increase in jobs 
in the past decade, +10,000 jobs. 

Table 2: Total employment (000s)1

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Change 10-
17

% 
change 
10-17

Bolton 105,000 105,000 103,000 105,000 107,000 107,000 109,000 112,000 7,000 6.7

Bury 65,000 65,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 67,000 71,000 69,000 4,000 6.2

Manchester 315,000 316,000 326,000 338,000 341,000 357,000 381,000 392,000 77,000 24.4

1 BRES 

Page 2



Page 3 of 13

Oldham 75,000 76,000 79,000 78,000 79,000 82,000 84,000 88,000 13,000 17.3

Rochdale 73,000 71,000 74,000 70,000 72,000 72,000 73,000 77,000 4,000 5.5

Salford 119,000 119,000 118,000 120,000 121,000 121,000 122,000 131,000 12,000 10.1

Stockport 126,000 125,000 125,000 121,000 123,000 126,000 129,000 131,000 5,000 4

Tameside 68,000 68,000 67,000 67,000 68,000 68,000 68,000 70,000 2,000 2.9

Trafford 131,000 133,000 133,000 137,000 143,000 148,000 150,000 152,000 21,000 16

Wigan 104,000 99,000 99,000 100,000 104,000 106,000 107,000 109,000 5,000 4.8

GM 1,181,000 1,177,000 1,189,000 1,201,000 1,225,000 1,254,000 1,294,000 1,331,000 150,000 12.7

2.3 Growth sectors

 Driving Salford’s growth is a diversity of sector strengths and also increasing sector 
specialisation.

 Salford has a large office based economy with over 4,000 businesses (4th in GM). The largest 
sector is professional services.

 Salford has a large industrial economy, with construction being the largest sector with over 
1,000 companies, but in terms of the number of industrial companies, it is only 8th in GM.

 Salford’s creative, digital, media sector is also comparatively large (4th in GM), and also larger 
than the GM average (4th) is Salford’s visitor and town centre economy.

Table 3: Business Base by Sector (2018)2

SECTOR GM Bolton Bury Manchester Oldham Rochdale Salford Stockport Tameside Trafford Wigan

01-03 : Agriculture, forestry 
& fishing

735 85 70 20 80 120 30 80 50 65 135

05-39 : Production 6,805 790 495 905 640 630 535 800 700 555 755
41-43 : Construction 12,085 1,235 1,055 1,675 970 1,145 1,110 1,345 915 1,130 1,505

45 : Motor trades 3,400 420 290 400 330 290 245 445 265 290 425
46 : Wholesale 5,855 555 400 1,340 380 400 605 705 375 650 445

49-53 : Transport & Storage 
(Inc. postal)

8,605 660 1,515 1,220 1,015 1,780 715 345 360 390 605

INDUSTRIAL 36,750 3,660 3,755 5,540 3,335 4,245 3,210 3,640 2,615 3,015 3,735
47 : Retail 16,360 1,300 965 6,410 895 850 1,385 1,285 860 1,285 1,125

55-56 : Accommodation & 
food services

7,485 635 480 2,050 560 490 660 770 505 625 710

VISITOR & TOWN CENTRES 23,845 1,935 1,445 8,460 1,455 1,340 2,045 2,055 1,365 1,910 1,835
90-99 : Arts, entertainment, 

recreation & other
7,325 720 560 1,510 535 490 620 895 515 735 745

58-63 : Information & 
communication

7,195 510 430 1,960 345 325 675 955 325 1,210 460

CREATIVE DIGITAL MEDIA 14,520 1,230 990 3,470 880 815 1,295 1,850 840 1,945 1,205
64-66 : Finance & insurance 4,320 275 265 805 145 155 1,295 430 160 610 180

68 : Property 4,685 345 410 1,340 210 255 565 490 180 600 290
69-75 : Professional, 
scientific & technical

17,560 1,355 1,120 4,765 830 800 1,485 2,410 850 2,675 1,270

77-82 : Business 
administration & support 

services

10,735 945 845 2,375 710 845 990 1,170 645 1,410 800

OFFICE 37,300 2,920 2,640 9,285 1,895 2,055 4,335 4,500 1,835 5,295 2,540
84 : Public administration & 

defence
630 155 25 125 30 20 50 55 50 35 85

85 : Education 2,750 260 205 565 220 205 265 285 185 280 280
86-88 : Health 7,190 810 510 1,505 500 565 645 820 470 780 585

PUBLIC SECTOR 10,570 1,225 740 2,195 750 790 960 1,160 705 1,095 950
BUSINESS BASE 123,720 11,055 9,640 28,970 8,395 9,365 11,875 13,285 7,410 13,325 10,400

2 ONS, Business Counts, October 2018.

Page 3



Page 4 of 13

 Since 2009, employment growth has been highest in creative, digital, media. Growth has also 
been in industrial (particularly logistics), the visitor economy and the public sector. The office 
economy has seen an overall decline during the period. This appears to be at the lower end in 
business services - typically back office functions (HR, recruitment, office cleaning, servicing, and 
security). Technology advancements may be a factor in this decline. Professional services 
however have increased substantially (e.g. legal, accounting, consultancy).

Table 4: Total employment by sector (change 2009-2017)3

SECTOR (SIC) 2009 2017 Change 09-17 % change 09-17
1: Agriculture, forestry & fishing (A) 250 250 0 0.0
2 : Mining, quarrying & utilities (B,D and E) 700 2,000 1,300 185.7
PRIMARY 950 2250 1300 136.8
3 : Manufacturing (C) 8,000 7,000 -1000 -12.5
4 : Construction (F) 8,000 8,000 0 0.0
5 : Motor trades (Part G) 1,750 2,000 250 14.3
6 : Wholesale (Part G) 7,000 8,000 1000 14.3
8 : Transport & storage (ink postal) (H) 3,000 5,000 2000 66.7
INDUSTRIAL 27,750 30,000 2250 8.1
7 : Retail (Part G) 8,000 9,000 1000 12.5
9 : Accommodation & food services (I) 7,000 7,000 0 0.0
VISITOR ECONOMY & TOWN CENTRES 15,000 16,000 1000 6.7
10 : Information & communication (J) 4,500 10,000 5500 122.2
18 : Arts, entertainment, recreation & other services (R,S,T and U) 4,000 4,000 0 0.0
DIGITAL CREATIVE MEDIA 8,500 14,000 5500 64.7
11 : Financial & insurance (K) 6,000 6,000 0 0.0
12 : Property (L) 3,000 3,500 500 16.7
13 : Professional, scientific & technical (M) 8,000 11,000 3000 37.5
14 : Business administration & support services (N) 17,000 12,000 -5000 -29.4
OFFICE ECONOMY 34,000 32,500 -1500 -4.4
15 : Public administration & defence (O) 7,000 8,000 1000 14.3
16 : Education (P) 11,000 11,000 0 0.0
17 : Health (Q) 15,000 16,000 1000 6.7
PUBLIC SECTOR 33,000 35,000 2000 6.1
TOTAL EMPLOYMENT 119,000 129,750 10750 9.0

SALFORD’S CREATIVE, DIGITAL, MEDIA SECTOR – 14,000 jobs, 1,295 businesses

 The city is home to a world class creative, digital and media cluster based at MediaCityUK and 
the Quays which comprises 7,000 jobs (at least 50% of Salford’s total) and 250 companies.

 Across the city, Salford’s particular strengths are in: Broadcast media – 3,000 jobs, 
Telecommunications – 3,000 jobs, IT (Technology) – 3,000 jobs.

 Growth in this sector has been exceptional with 6,500 additional jobs created since 2010, 
including the relocation of the BBC to the city in 2011/12.

 The relocation of the BBC to Salford was a catalyst for development of the cluster – currently 
around one additional job created for every BBC job.

 The city also has an established and developing creative industries sector providing around 
4,000 jobs. This is concentrated around the Chapel St area and at MediaCityUK and the Quays.

 The MediaCityUK development has also acted as a catalyst for a technology cluster to grow 
significantly in the wider Quays area, attracting Tech companies such as TalkTalk but other 

3 ONS, Business Register and Employment Survey, 2009-2017 (October 2018)

Page 4



Page 5 of 13

sectors like Manufacturing, Health and Retail that need technology to drive their future business 
growth, companies such as Kellogg’s, JT International, The Hut Group, BUPA Healthcare UK and 
Marks & Spencer. 

Case Study: The move of the TalkTalk HQ clearly demonstrates the confidence in the Quays as a 
key destination for new Technology driven businesses. TalkTalk, a national telecom provider 
have relocated almost 400 tech roles from London during 2019 to join the company’s existing 
Salford base of 1,250 employees in the former Colgate Palmolive factory now known as 
Soapworks. Drivers for the move were to create a world class campus to drive business growth, 
to have the ability to attract the right skills and talent to the business, and to collaborate and 
innovate with the ecosystem in MediaCityUK and the region. TalkTalk’s move has also prompted 
other global tech firms from within their supply chain to relocate to this area such as Canadian 
based CGI, one of the largest independent IT and business consulting firms in the world; also 
Tech Mahindra, an Indian multinational IT provider that offers networking technology, 
integrated engineering, and business process outsourcing to a range of industries. Together 
these two businesses have created almost 300 jobs in the Quays. 

SALFORD’S INDUSTRIAL ECONOMY – 32,250 jobs, 3,210 businesses

 Significant industrial economy with strengths in manufacturing and construction, providing 
15,000 jobs in the city between them.

 A number of high quality industrial areas and business parks across the city including flagship 
sites - Northbank Industrial Park, Irlam, and Agecroft Commerce Park, Swinton, have benefitted 
from recent investment to meet market demand (Synergi Design & Build 175,000 sqft at Irlam, 
Evolutive 200,000 sqft speculative development at Agecroft).  

 The logistics (Transport & Storage and Wholesale) sector is also strong providing 13,000 jobs and 
has shown strong recent growth. The major future growth opportunity in the city is at Port 
Salford, where up to 500,000 m2 will be brought forward for industrial and logistics 
development. The first tenant - Great Bear, has created just over 200 jobs at this location and 
45% of these have been secured by Salford residents. 

 Going forward Salford has identified a major new innovation district, the Salford Innovation 
Triangle where Industry 4.0 and tech companies will be encouraged to flourish, building on the 
technology strengths at MediaCityUK and the Quays, The University of Salford’s research 
strengths and Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust’s role as a global digital exemplar.

Case Study: Centrica Business Solutions recently purchased EnerG PLC which has been based in 
Salford for over 30 years. The company manufacture combined heat and power (CHP) units for a 
range of customers such as schools, hospitals and industrial facilities. The units generate and 
control energy consumption by turning gas into both electricity and heat in one process, saving 
organisations up to 40% on their energy bills. On-site generation, such as CHP, reduces the 
reliance on National Grid imported electricity, while allowing them to sell any unused electricity 
back to the grid. CHP units from the facility have been installed in landmarks such as Buckingham 
Palace, as well as being exported to countries as far afield as Australia. 
The business has on site R&D capability and they have recently expanded their CHP facility 
(located adjacent to MediaCityUK) which led to the creation of 20 skilled jobs and additional 
apprenticeships. Increased capacity at the site will enable Centrica to increase both the size and 
number of CHP units built.   

Page 5



Page 6 of 13

SALFORD’S OFFICE ECONOMY – 32,250 jobs, 4,335 businesses

 Major sectors present in the city include business, professional and financial services 
comprising legal, accounting, finance, insurance as well as property and real estate which is 
providing in itself 3,500 jobs.

 Critical going forward will be the provision of Grade A and secondary office space to attract 
companies into the city. Many large, international companies have been attracted to Salford due 
to the availability of quality office accommodation at the right price in the right location. In many 
cases this has been made possible by the public sector, for example, by sharing the investment 
risk in some city centre developments, or by creating lasting partnerships with the private sector 
to create the right offer, as has been the case at MediaCityUK with Peel Media.  

 Major investment in new Grade A developments at City Centre Salford (New Bailey and 
Greengate) and at MediaCityUK and the Quays will go some way towards meeting demand. 

 The secondary office market is changing rapidly - there are a number of new spaces available to 
support the trend for flexible working in the sector:

o Lowry Mill - Swinton, has benefitted from significant investment to create a modern 
office complex whilst still retaining the industrial heritage of the Mill. Lowry Mill is now 
almost fully occupied, with the latest tenant Moorepay, a technology driven payroll and 
HR Services Company, relocating just over 100 jobs. 

o Centenary House – Eccles, Regus has recently transformed part of the space to create a 
business hub serving the MediaCityUK market and Trafford Park, as well as providing 
start up space.

o St James’ House – Pendleton and City Approach – Eccles, both have been completely 
refurbished and upgraded by Orbit Developments to create flexible office and co-
working space.      

 Recent investments have included:

Swinton Group formerly a French owned insurance broker that relocated their HQ into the 
Grade A Embankment development within the City Centre district of Salford during 2016-17, 
safeguarding almost a 1,000 jobs in the region, and with ambitious growth plans.  It was 
important to the business to remain in a City Centre location but they needed the right 
office accommodation to meet their business growth ambitions as well being able to recruit 
and retain a talented workforce. The business could have chosen a number of locations 
within the UK and overseas but the Embankment development and wider business support 
offer provided the best solution.  The business has recently been bought out by The 
Ardonagh Group which has its registered office in Jersey. 

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer LLP chose the Grade A One New Bailey development to 
establish their Global Business Service Centre (GBSC). Initially starting with just over 300 jobs 
(which they recruited to whilst in their temporary accommodation in Manchester City 
Centre), the GBSC now employs approx 500 people providing business services to the rest of 
the group.  This anchor tenant proved to be the catalyst for New Bailey as further occupiers 
were quickly attracted to the development such as WH Ireland (a wealth management 
company), Shawbrook Bank Limited, and Circle Recruitment.  One New Bailey has now 
reached nearly 100% occupancy and this early success helped to unlock further 
development plots.  

Page 6



Page 7 of 13

AJ Bell (previously located in Trafford) seized the opportunity to purchase a whole building 
within the Exchange Quay development and benefitted from the £10m plus investment into 
the estate’s public realm and amenities by Hunter Real Estate Investment Managers.   This 
also meant AJ Bell could safeguard all 450 existing jobs in the move from Trafford to Salford 
(back to their original roots). Since the relocation in 2016 AJ Bell’s headcount has grown by 
89% to approx 850 employees.  The company has recently been voted by the Sunday Times 
as one of the 100 Best Companies to Work for (for the second year in a row). 

BUPA Healthcare UK worked with their existing landlord Peel and was able to purchase a 
speculative build that was perfect for their needs and enabled them to consolidate a number 
of North West locations. In 2018 the business moved approx 2,000 Salford jobs into the new 
BUPA Place office. The headcount has now growth to approx 2,400. This is now the largest 
centre in the BUPA portfolio and offers a range of services from dental to virtual 
physiotherapy services to back office functions, and it has capacity for further growth. The 
new work environment – BREEAM excellent rated building, has had a huge impact on BUPA 
employees and the way the business functions.  BUPA Place was awarded the 2018 Happiest 
Workplace Award and now plays an integral role in the Salford community supporting many 
local initiatives.  

SALFORD’S VISITOR ECONOMY & SALFORD’S TOWNS -16,000 jobs, 2,045 businesses

 Salford’s towns and high streets each have distinct heritage and identity. 
 Retail remains a focus providing 9,000 jobs. Going forward there is growing consensus that the 

‘bricks and mortar’ retail sector is likely to decline with the trend moving towards online retail 
shopping.

 The hotels, food and drink offer in the city has grown significantly now providing 7,000 jobs. 
Much of this growth has occurred at the MediaCityUK and the Quays and City Centre Salford 
areas.

 The Lowry is GM’s most visited attraction and the RHS fifth garden at Worsley will cement 
Salford’s visitor economy.

SALFORD’S PUBLIC SECTOR – 35,000 jobs, 960 businesses

 In the education sector, the University of Salford and Salford City College are major employers 
in their own right and with schools and other skills organisations provide 11,000 jobs in the city.

 Health - This is Salford’s largest individual sector reflecting a growing city. Salford Royal 
Foundation Trust is the major employer in the sector locally with a reported 7,000 staff based 
there. The Trust is also playing a leading role in the field of digital health, recognised as a global 
Digital Exemplar.

 HMRC - HM Revenue and Customs signed a 25-year lease in Salford in April 2018 for office space 
for 4,500 civil servants. Some 2,000 staff will move in 2022 to the seven-storey development, at 
New Bailey, which will be one of the tax agency’s 13 new regional centres. A second phase of the 
Greater Manchester development will be complete by 2027-8. In the interim, additional capacity 
will be retained at HMRC’s office Trinity Bridge House in Salford for around 2,500 workers. 

Page 7



Page 8 of 13

2.4 Business start-ups, closures and self-employment
 Salford is performing well relative to GM in business start-ups (3rd on the latest data and 4th in 

terms of growth since 2012).
 Almost 11,000 residents are self-employed in Salford, 6th highest in GM. Growth in self-

employment in the last 10 years has been 6th highest in GM also. This may indicate that residents 
are not taking advantage of Salford’s growth and starting businesses as much as they could.

Table 5: Business start ups4 
Area 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 17 Rank Change 12-17 % change 12-17 Rank

GM 10,855 14,710 14,225 15,925 20,535 23,590 12,735 117.3
Bolton 975 1,380 1,350 1,425 1,605 1,840 5 865 88.7 5
Bury 835 1,040 1,015 1,090 2,210 2,850 2 2,015 241.3 1
Manchester 2,545 3,385 3,525 4,190 6,445 8,460 1 5,915 232.4 2
Oldham 695 965 865 940 1,500 1,060 9 365 52.5 6
Rochdale 665 905 910 955 1,140 2,035 4 1,370 206.0 3
Salford 1,030 1,345 1,365 1,470 1,675 2,040 3 1,010 98.1 4
Stockport 1,220 1,620 1,495 1,675 1,850 1,430 7 210 17.2 10
Tameside 655 840 815 925 885 855 10 200 30.5 9
Trafford 1,290 1,965 1,690 1,915 1,905 1,765 6 475 36.8 7
Wigan 945 1,265 1,195 1,340 1,320 1,255 8 310 32.8 8

Table 6: Self-employment5

 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Change 08-18 %change 08-18

GM 134.31 135.41 142.04 136.37 146.14 152.21 165.15 154.68 153.79 150.04 143.78 9.46 7.05

Bolton 13.74 13.47 14.31 13.72 14.15 15.64 16.81 15.16 15.65 15.42 14.83 1.10 7.97

Bury 9.07 9.72 10.64 9.96 10.84 10.83 11.39 10.81 11.34 11.15 10.68 1.60 17.68
Manchester 22.92 24.90 26.71 25.69 28.51 30.41 33.15 32.07 33.06 32.67 31.57 8.66 37.77
Oldham 10.24 10.41 10.48 10.50 11.43 11.78 12.29 11.77 11.38 11.12 10.62 0.38 3.73

Rochdale 10.25 11.13 10.66 10.25 11.25 11.12 11.53 10.51 10.40 10.10 9.63 -0.62 -6.04
Salford 10.59 10.77 11.11 10.80 11.32 12.22 13.53 12.20 11.76 11.41 10.95 0.36 3.42
Stockport 20.19 17.07 17.65 16.62 17.57 17.78 19.32 18.04 17.52 16.81 16.04 -4.15 -20.58

Tameside 10.26 10.54 10.88 10.32 10.91 11.23 12.20 10.96 10.49 10.20 9.70 -0.56 -5.48

Trafford 12.49 12.80 13.78 13.52 14.31 15.01 16.76 16.67 16.16 15.52 14.87 2.38 19.08
Wigan 14.57 14.61 15.81 14.99 15.86 16.19 18.16 16.49 16.05 15.64 14.89 0.32 2.17

 In terms of total number of business failures, Salford currently ranks 5th highest in GM. 
 There has been a substantial growth in the rate of business failures since 2012 from 860 to 

1,540, 3rd highest growth in failures in GM for the period.

Table 7: Business failures/closures6

Area 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 17 Rank Change 12-17 % change 12-17 Rank

GM 10,500 10,045 10,685 12,550 12,680 16,340 5,840 56

Bolton 1,130 945 1,060 1,210 1,155 1,380 6 250 22.1 10

Bury 810 715 785 890 965 1,605 3 795 98.1 1

Manchester 2,275 2,285 2,605 2,995 3,235 4,165 1 1,890 83.1 2

Oldham 750 750 700 780 725 930 8 180 24.0 9

Rochdale 670 620 670 725 685 880 9 210 31.3 6

4 ONS, Business Demography, November 2018
5 Oxford Economics, GMFM Base Forecast, January 2019.
6 ONS, Business Demography, November 2018.

Page 8



Page 9 of 13

Salford 860 830 925 1,180 1,105 1,540 5 680 79.1 3

Stockport 1,250 1,200 1,140 1,375 1,360 1,575 4 325 26.0 8

Tameside 645 610 680 655 670 840 10 195 30.2 7

Trafford 1,230 1,235 1,280 1,790 1,825 2,160 2 930 75.6 4

Wigan 880 855 840 950 955 1,265 7 385 43.8 5

 Looking at the difference between start-ups and failures, Salford is currently 4th highest in GM.
 The difference between start-ups and failures has grown between 2012 and 2017 (positively – 

4th best in GM for the period). Salford has a consistently higher number of start-ups than failures 
resulting in a positive contribution to its business base.  Many of these start up businesses will 
have accessed public sector business support programmes to help them translate their ideas and 
ambitions into successful businesses.  

 Zeal Creative worked with the Business Growth Hub to develop a business plan along with 
financial forecasts, which helped the firm secure a start up loan from Hub partner, Business 
Finance Solutions. The funding was initially used to launch the business allowing the firm to 
secure office space as well as contributing to the cost of technology such as computers. The firm 
recently hired its first apprentice increasing headcount to 18.  Zeal hit £1.8m turnover in its 
second year of trading.

Table 8: Business start-ups minus failures/closures7

Area 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 17 rank Change 12-17 % change 12-17 rank

GM 355 4,665 3,540 3,375 7,855 7,250 6,895 1942.2

Bolton -155 435 290 215 450 460 5 615 -396.8 8

Bury 25 325 230 200 1,245 1,245 2 1,220 4880.0 1

Manchester 270 1,100 920 1,195 3,210 4,295 1 4,025 1490.7 2

Oldham -55 215 165 160 775 130 6 185 -336.4 7

Rochdale -5 285 240 230 455 1,155 3 1,160 -23200.0 10

Salford 170 515 440 290 570 500 4 330 194.1 4

Stockport -30 420 355 300 490 -145 9 -115 383.3 3

Tameside 10 230 135 270 215 15 7 5 50.0 5

Trafford 60 730 410 125 80 -395 10 -455 -758.3 9

Wigan 65 410 355 390 365 -10 8 -75 -115.4 6

2.5 Business survival rates (up to first 3 years of trading)

 Tables 9, 10 and 11 below show survival rates in Salford compared to GM for different start-up 
cohorts.

 Survival rates for Salford start-ups have been consistently lower than other parts of GM, never 
ranking above 6th in GM. However, they have been on an upward trend and the 2014 Salford 
cohort had closed the gap with the rest of GM for the 3-year survival rate (latest data).   

7 ONS, Business Demography, November 2018.

Page 9



Page 10 of 13

Table 9: 3 year survival rates (2012 start ups)8

startups 2012 1 yr % Rank 2 yr % Rank 3 yr % Rank

GM 10,855 9,975 91.9 7,855 72.4 6,200 57.1
Bolton 975 885 90.8 8 700 71.8 8 560 57.4 7
Bury 835 770 92.2 6 625 74.9 3 495 59.3 4
Manchester 2,545 2,315 91.0 7 1,780 69.9 9 1,355 53.2 10
Oldham 695 650 93.5 2 500 71.9 7 405 58.3 6
Rochdale 665 620 93.2 3 490 73.7 5 405 60.9 2
Salford 1,030 935 90.8 8 745 72.3 6 560 54.4 9
Stockport 1,220 1,135 93.0 5 925 75.8 2 745 61.1 1
Tameside 655 615 93.9 1 490 74.8 4 385 58.8 5
Trafford 1,290 1,170 90.7 9 880 68.2 10 715 55.4 8
Wigan 945 880 93.1 4 720 76.2 1 575 60.8 3

Table 10: 3 year survival rates (2013 start ups)9

startups 2013 1 yr % Rank 2 yr % Rank 3 yr % Rank

GM 14,710 13,775 93.6 10,790 73.4 8,560 58.2
Bolton 1,380 1,305 94.6 4 1,015 73.6 7 805 58.3 7

Bury 1,040 965 92.8 8 775 74.5 4 635 61.1 3
Manchester 3,385 3,160 93.4 6 2,365 69.9 10 1,850 54.7 10
Oldham 965 915 94.8 3 715 74.1 6 580 60.1 4
Rochdale 905 850 93.9 5 675 74.6 3 530 58.6 6
Salford 1,345 1,255 93.3 7 980 72.9 8 745 55.4 9

Stockport 1,620 1,500 92.6 9 1,235 76.2 2 995 61.4 2
Tameside 840 800 95.2 2 625 74.4 5 500 59.5 5
Trafford 1,965 1,820 92.6 9 1,425 72.5 9 1,130 57.5 8
Wigan 1,265 1,205 95.3 1 980 77.5 1 790 62.5 1

Table 11: 3 year survival rates (2014 start ups)10

startups 2014 1 yr % Rank 2 yr % Rank 3 yr % Rank

GM 14,225 13,095 92.1 10,545 74.1 8,450 59.4

Bolton 1,350 1,235 91.5 7 965 71.5 10 755 55.9 10

Bury 1,015 955 94.1 2 770 75.9 23 625 61.6 1

Manchester 3,525 3,245 92.1 5 2,595 73.6 7 2,040 57.9 9

Oldham 865 805 93.1 3 635 73.4 8 515 59.5 7

Rochdale 910 845 92.9 4 705 77.5 1 555 61.0 5

Salford 1,365 1,240 90.8 9 1,015 74.4 6 815 59.7 6

Stockport 1,495 1,365 91.3 8 1,115 74.6 5 920 61.5 2

 Tameside 815 750 92.0 6 620 76.1 2 500 61.3 3

Trafford 1,690 1,525 90.2 10 1,220 72.2 9 995 58.9 8

Wigan 1,195 1,130 94.6 1 905 75.7 4 730 61.1 4

2.6 Business base by size and turnover

 Above GM average proportion (%) of micro sized companies (joint 4th in GM).

8 ONS, Business Demography, November 2018.

9 ONS, Business Demography, November 2018.
10 ONS, Business Demography, November 2018.

Page 10



Page 11 of 13

 Below GM average proportion (%) of small companies (7th in GM)
 Above GM average proportion (%) of medium companies (Joint 2nd in GM)
 Below GM average proportion (%) of large companies (Joint 5th in GM)

Table 12: Business Base by Employment Size band11

Micro (0-9) % of total Small (10-49) % of total Medium (50-249) % of total Large (250+) % of total Total %

GM 103785 83.9 15810 12.8 3550 2.9 570 0.5 123715 100
Bolton 9195 83.2 1495 13.5 315 2.8 50 0.5 11055 100
Bury 8475 88.0 965 10.0 170 1.8 25 0.3 9635 100
Manchester 23850 82.3 3920 13.5 1005 3.5 195 0.7 28970 100
Oldham 7080 84.3 1055 12.6 225 2.7 35 0.4 8395 100
Rochdale 8040 85.9 1060 11.3 240 2.6 25 0.3 9365 100
Salford 10005 84.3 1455 12.3 365 3.1 50 0.4 11875 100
Stockport 11270 84.8 1615 12.2 335 2.5 65 0.5 13285 100
Tameside 6195 83.6 1000 13.5 195 2.6 20 0.3 7410 100
Trafford 11085 83.2 1770 13.3 410 3.1 60 0.5 13325 100
Wigan 8590 82.6 1475 14.2 290 2.8 45 0.4 10400 100

 Large number of high turnover companies (3rd in GM at £50 million+ and 3rd £10 million to £49.9 
million)

 A growing number of large employers are located in Salford.
 Salford has recently become an attractive location for HQs and is home to head offices of a 

number of large companies.
 Large number of low turnover companies (up to £49,000) – 2nd in GM.
 Generally average to slightly below average across the middle range of turnover bands.

Table 13: Business Base by Turnover12

0-49 50-99 100-
249

250-
499

500-
999

1000-
1999

2000-
4999

5000-
9999

10000-
49999

50000+ Total

GM 15,985 29,210 31,260 12,080 7,150 4,045 3,085 1,155 970 310 105,250
Bolton 1,265 2,425 2,985 1,180 685 415 290 95 75 30 9,445
Bury 1,025 3,290 2,335 910 520 270 200 60 45 15 8,670
Manchester 3,835 6,155 7,225 2,675 1,735 910 710 270 245 90 23,850
Oldham 880 2,335 2,000 925 525 270 200 85 65 10 7,295
Rochdale 1,050 3,195 2,025 855 460 275 220 75 75 25 8,255
Salford 2,325 2,625 2,485 1,075 585 395 310 115 105 35 10,055
Stockport 1,705 2,815 3,780 1,390 805 435 350 130 100 25 11,535
Tameside 840 1,495 2,010 790 420 260 185 80 45 10 6,135
Trafford 1,865 2,725 3,600 1,215 780 460 370 145 140 50 11,350
Wigan 1,195 2,150 2,815 1,065 635 355 250 100 75 20 8,660

2.7 GVA and Productivity

 In the past decade Salford’s economy grew by over £750 million to almost reach almost £6.5 
billion in 2018.

 This was the 3rd highest economic growth in GM over the period in absolute terms (value), (4th 
highest % increase).

11 ONS, UK Industry: Activity, Size and Location, October 2018
12 ONS, UK Industry: Activity, Size and Location, October 2018

Page 11



Page 12 of 13

Table 14: GVA (£000s)13

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Change 
08-18

% change 
08-18

Bolton 4776.0 4570.6 4542.1 4519.2 4572.4 4629.2 4572.1 4670.8 4818.8 4952.3 5036.7 260.7 5.5

Bury 3221.1 3113.8 3173.7 3173.2 3206.9 3272.2 3221.5 3397.7 3557.1 3647.8 3697.7 476.6 14.8

Manchester 14890.6 14776.6 15027.4 14807.9 15396.3 16239.6 16510.1 17247.3 17930.6 18582.3 18979.6 4089.0 27.5

Oldham 3674.6 3460.3 3512.6 3559.9 3600.2 3674.0 3569.8 3874.0 3970.7 4044.7 4092.9 418.3 11.4

Rochdale 3409.0 3254.6 3246.9 3199.1 3316.2 3296.5 3399.2 3428.9 3505.3 3561.3 3596.7 187.7 5.5

Salford 5699.2 5595.1 5591.3 5524.8 5675.2 5892.7 5858.1 6091.5 6181.3 6325.9 6455.9 756.7 13.3

Stockport 6770.4 6710.2 6805.4 6638.0 6656.9 6469.5 6156.9 6225.6 6324.2 6422.5 6508.7 -261.7 -3.9

Tameside 3899.2 3753.6 3678.2 3581.9 3572.1 3559.3 3393.7 3378.9 3374.9 3413.0 3440.7 -458.5 -11.8

Trafford 7169.2 7016.1 7187.6 7147.0 7171.8 7472.2 7548.5 7889.4 7981.1 8149.1 8309.1 1139.9 15.9

Wigan 4801.6 4544.6 4664.9 4509.1 4593.6 4664.9 4705.7 4902.9 5010.6 5084.6 5130.8 329.2 6.9

Greater 
Manchester

58310.8 56795.6 57430.2 56660.2 57761.4 59170.0 58935.5 61107.2 62654.6 64183.4 65248.7 6937.9 11.9

 The GM economy needs to increase productivity to narrow the gap with London and the South 
East. This has been recognised as a challenge since the MIER reported in 2009. The recent GM 
Independent Prosperity Review concludes that GM needs to increase productivity and that in 
certain respects productivity performance has worsened in the last 10 years.

 Salford is currently the second most productive part of GM, after Trafford, with productivity 
(£GVA) per job at £48,300. 

 Salford has experienced the highest productivity increase in GM in the past decade, with jobs 
based in the city increasing in productivity by 12%.

 This is in stark contrast to GM. The causes of this are unknown but could be attributed to recent 
inward investment to the city (attraction of productive jobs), existing firms and workers 
increasing productivity, new starts ups/self-employed that are productive, or a combination of 
the above factors. It is likely to be related to the growth that has occurred within both the digital 
and professional services sectors.

 Salford’s productivity growth has taken place in a context of major investment into the city into 
development and infrastructure. Whatever the cause Salford has experienced a major growth in 
productivity well above the GM average and it is important for Salford that this is supported to 
continue, but also important to GM - as a contribution to GM’s low productivity.

Table 15: Productivity (£GVA per employment)14

08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Change 08-18 % change 08-18
Bolton 38.4 38.5 39.0 38.9 39.9 38.9 38.0 39.4 39.0 39.3 39.6 1.2 3.1
Bury 44.4 42.5 42.8 42.9 42.5 44.0 42.4 44.8 43.9 44.4 44.8 0.4 0.8
Manchester 43.8 43.7 44.5 44.0 44.0 44.7 44.7 45.0 44.2 44.4 44.6 0.9 2.0
Oldham 41.2 39.2 41.8 41.8 41.0 41.6 39.9 42.2 42.8 43.2 43.6 2.3 5.7
Rochdale 39.5 36.9 39.7 39.9 39.1 40.6 41.7 42.3 42.8 43.2 43.5 4.1 10.3
Salford 43.1 43.9 43.5 43.1 44.9 45.2 44.5 46.6 47.2 47.9 48.3 5.2 12.0
Stockport 45.1 46.6 47.8 47.2 47.1 46.7 43.8 43.9 43.9 44.6 45.0 -0.1 -0.3
Tameside 49.4 45.9 46.7 46.1 46.7 46.2 43.0 43.9 44.0 44.4 44.8 -4.6 -9.3
Trafford 50.6 49.9 50.6 49.6 49.7 50.0 48.5 48.6 48.7 49.3 49.7 -0.9 -1.7
Wigan 42.1 38.6 39.3 39.9 40.3 40.5 38.8 40.7 41.3 41.7 42.1 -0.1 -0.2
GM 43.9 43.1 44.0 43.7 43.9 44.3 43.2 44.2 44.1 44.5 44.8 1.0 2.2

13 Oxford Economics, GMFM Base Forecast, January 2019.
14 Oxford Economics, GMFM Base Forecast, January 2019.

Page 12



Page 13 of 13

DATA SOURCES
ONS, Business Register and Employment Survey, (Employment), 2010 – 2017 (data released October 
2018)
ONS, Business Counts, 2010-2018 (October 2018)
ONS Business Demography (November 2018)
ONS UK Industry: Activity, Size and Location (October 2018)
Oxford Economics, Greater Manchester Forecasting Model (2018, released 2019)

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST
Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972

Name of Report Urban Vision return of 
services to Salford City Council – 
overview of transition programme, 
budget planning and workforce 
considerations 

Committee Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny 
Panel
Date 30/09/2019

Category of exemption applied: 
4:  Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders 
under, the authority.
3: Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information).

Public Interest Test Questionnaire
This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality.

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in 
public debate about current issues?



Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions? 



Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff?

x

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 
for council taxpayers? 

x

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 
decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives? 

x

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 
information which might adversely affect public health and safety)  

x

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision- x

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



making or examples of malpractice?

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred?

x

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 
public any useful information?



Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information? 



Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation?

x

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving 
the public useful information? 

x

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or 
individuals at risk? 

x

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general 
would benefit more from information being withheld? 

 

x

Page 16



Justification of decision
(Please provide explicit reasoning)

The report contains commercially sensitive information relating to the impact of the 
transition of services back into the council.  It also contains information about 
workforce matters, whereby a formal legal process needs to take place with Urban 
Vision staff in line with TUPE regulations, which will not have commenced by the time 
the report is published.

Other documents attached? 

Name and Title: Shoaib Mohammad, Assistant Director Technical Services 

Date: 23 September 2019

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
24 June 2019  
 
Meeting commenced: 6.00 p.m. 
      “  ended: 7.30 p.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Sharpe  –  in the Chair 
  Councillors August, Critchley, Dickman, R. Garrido, Hesling, Nkurunziza, Ward, Weir and 

Wheeler. 
 
  Councillor Antrobus  – Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development 
 
OFFICERS: Chris Smith  – Group Engineer, Highways Design, Urban Vision 
  Peter Openshaw – Assistant Director Environment & Community Safety 
  Claire Edwards  – Democratic Services 
 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE: 

Graeme Langton 
Clare Ovey 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Jolley and Lewis, and on behalf of 
Councillor Jones, Executive Support Member for Transport. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
3. INCLUSION OF ITEMS LISTED IN PARTS 1 AND 2 OF THE AGENDA 
 

A discussion took place regarding the inclusion of Item 6, Manchester North West Quadrant Study 
Update, under Part 2 of the agenda following which it was agreed that consideration would be given 
to the report under Part 1 of the meeting. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the report in relation to the Manchester North West Quadrant Study Update be 
considered under Part 1 of the meeting. 

 
4. TOWER BLOCK FIRE SAFETY UPDATE  

 
Members noted the written update in respect of this matter that had been provided along with copies 
of the May and June editions of the News Updates to residents. 
 
Mr. Langton addressed the Panel during which he made reference to the following issues – 
 

� With regard to the fire that had occurred at Salix Court on 17th January 2019, on which floor 
did the fire start, which floors were affected and were those floors completely evacuated? 

 
� He had believed that a full evacuation of the building would take place in the event of a fire – 

when did this policy change and who changed it?  Why had consultation not been undertaken 
in respect of this matter? 

 Page 41

Agenda Item 8



� He requested that he be provided with a copy of the evacuation procedures for each of the 
tower blocks in the Pendleton area. 
 

� Councillor Merry having made contradictory statements regarding issues in relation to the 
windows.  He referred to residents having been informed that they could only vent their 
windows and not open them as they had been designed to be opened.  Not being able to 
open the windows as they had been designed and keys being required for the windows 
presented a fire risk.  Residents were being asked to sign a document indicating that if the 
windows are opened and they break, residents would be liable to prosecution and cost. 
 

� A type of fan convector heater having been incorrectly installed in some bathrooms. 
 
Discussion took place by Panel Members which included reference to the following – 
 

• Concern regarding the lack of progress in respect of the removal/replacement of the cladding, 
other corrective fire safety works (fire doors, et.) and the installation of sprinklers.  Members 
asked to be provided with timescales in respect of the above works with regard to each of the 
nine tower blocks. 

 
• A request for the Panel to be provided with the fire evacuation procedure in respect of each of 

the nine tower blocks. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT responses be sought in respect of the above-mentioned issues and provided to 
Mr. Langton and Members of the Panel. 
 

5. SALFORD INNOVATION PARK 
 
Peter Openshaw presented a Briefing Note in respect of Salford Innovation Park which provided 
information in respect of the following – 
 
� Background 
� Occupancy 
� Financial Position 
� University of Salford and Crescent Masterplan 
� Management Guidelines 

o Area 1 
o Area 2 
o Area 3 
o Salford Innovation Forum 
o Remainder of the estate 

� Rental Offer 
� Issues 

o Winders Way 
o Manchester Science Parks 

� Summary in relation to Members’ Questions 
 
Discussion took place during which reference was made to the following – 
 
• Concern regarding the performance of Salford Innovation Park since its acquisition by the 

Council in terms of it having failed to reach its expected potential, due to the letting of units not 
having been at the level expected which had in turn reduced income.  Discussion took place 

Page 42



regarding the costs incurred as a result of the high void levels on the estate and the 
arrangements in respect of business rates. 
 

• Concern regarding the lack of progress that had been made since this matter was considered by 
the Panel two years previously, at which time reference had been made to the University and 
Crescent Masterplan aiming to revive the fortunes of Salford Innovation Park in the long-term. 
 

• With regard to the new management guidelines which included only short-term agreements being 
granted in parts of the estate, concern was expressed that this would result in businesses leaving 
the city.  It was established that in such situations, work was undertaken with the business 
concerned with a view to identifying suitable alternative accommodation.  It was indicated that a 
number of businesses requiring short term lettings had moved to another part of the estate. 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report and comments be noted. 

 
6. MANCHESTER NORTH WEST QUADRANT STUDY UPDATE 
 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place which provided an update on the 
development of the North West Quadrant study commissioned by the Department for Transport and 
the emerging early options for possible highway and public transport improvements. 
 
Chris Smith presented the report which provided details in respect of the following – 
 
� Introduction and Background 

o The objectives were outlined as follows: 
• To facilitate and support the delivery of the Northern Powerhouse by ensuring the 

North West Quadrant of the M60 enables transformational growth in employment, 
housing and economic output. 

• To improve journey times, reliability, safety and resilience across the study area. 
• To improve connectivity for all users so they are able to access education, 

employment, business and leisure opportunities. 
• To minimise adverse impacts on the environment and maximise opportunities for a 

net improvement to the environment particularly to air quality and noise across the 
study area. 

o In November 2016, the DfT published the Manchester North West Quadrant Study report 
drawing together their findings into four possible packages of improvements which formed 
the basis of previous briefings to Members: 

• Northern Corridor 
• Outer Orbital Corridor 
• In-Corridor 
• Public Transport Max – an integrated package of pubic transport measures but 

without the need for any highway interventions.  This option was subsequently 
abandoned as it failed to meet the objectives of the study. 

o In Summer 2018, Highways England appointed consultants to further develop the In-
Corridor option.  This followed an assessment of the initial packages which concluded that 
an optimised In-Corridor package represented the best performing package overall. 

� Potential Impact on Salford 
� Next Steps 

 
Councillor Antrobus shared with the Panel his concerns regarding a lack of openness and transparency 
in respect of the process that had been undertaken with regard to the study.  He made particular 

Page 43



reference to the ‘Public Transport Max’ option having been abandoned and the preferred package 
having been announced without consultation having taken place with the Council or with the public.  He 
also referred to the proposals relating to modelling current behaviour, rather than focusing on changing 
people’s behaviour in the future in terms of increasing the use of public transport. 
 
Discussion took place during which reference was made to the following – 
 

� Concern regarding a lack of vision in respect of the proposals which appeared to ‘tinker around 
the edges’ and did not make reference to how they would link in with other forms of transport. 
 

� The need for a transport improvement strategy, to include all modes of transport, with a view to 
delivering real change. 
The plans need to integrate more closely with the Greater Manchester Transport Strategy 2040 
and associated documents which, alongside the Greater Manchester Mayor’s vision for the future 
of public transport, set out a vision for the future of the transport network in the region across all 
transport modes.  Transport for Greater Manchester are working closely with both Salford and 
Highways England to progress this work and key plans to improve the public transport network in 
Salford are included in these documents.  However, Highways England’s budget for the whole 
country from 2020-25 is £25.3Bn and is limited to investment in the motorway network only, 
making it difficult to deliver integrated transport proposals with other modes. 
 

� Concern that the process had not been as inclusive as it could have been in terms of public 
engagement/consultation.  Reference was made to the next steps outlined in the report which 
indicated that stakeholder meetings would be taking place later in 2019 and a public consultation 
on the proposals would be undertaken during 2020. 
 

� The proposals appearing to help people to travel through Salford more quickly, rather than 
benefitting the environment, the economy or people living and working in the city. 
 

� Discussion about the importance of resolving the issues at Junction 13 (Southbound), Worsley.  
Chris Smith indicated that the operation of Junctions 12, 13 and 14 would be reviewed as part of 
the North West Quadrant Study, the results of which were due to be available later in the year.  
Members also mentioned the challenging traffic conditions experienced in Walkden and Little 
Hulton and the need to continue to look at the capacity from the M602 to the Mancunian Way 
which was not part of the current study.   

 
RESOLVED: THAT the content of the report and comments be noted, and the Panel be kept up to 
date with future progress. 

 
7. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 20th May be included on the agenda for 
consideration at the next meeting. 
 

8. DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 
 
The Chair reported that consideration was to be given to the development of the Panel’s Work 
Programme for 2019/20 at the next meeting.   

 
9. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

 
Monday 22 July 2019, 6:00 p.m. (Briefing for Panel Members at 5:30 p.m.) Page 44



1 

 

GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
22nd July 2019  
 
Meeting commenced: 6.00 p.m. 
      “  ended: 7.35 p.m. 

 
PRESENT:  Councillor Lewis – in the Chair 
  Councillors August, Critchley, R. Garrido, Jolley, Nkurunziza, Sharpe, Ward, Weir and 

Wheeler. 
 
  Councillor Antrobus – Lead Member for Planning & Sustainable Development 
 
OFFICERS: Kurt Partington - Head of Development, Regeneration & Development 
  Sarah Ashurst  - Group Leader (Investment) 
  Claire Edwards  – Democratic Services 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Dickman and Hesling, and on behalf 
of Councillor Kelly (Lead Member for Housing & Neighbourhoods) and Councillor Jones (Executive 
Support Member for Transport). 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor R. Garrido declared an interest in respect of Minute 5 (Tower Block Fire Safety) due to him 
being a Member of ForViva Board. 

 
3. PLACE BUSINESS PLAN 
 

Kurt Partington and Sarah Ashurst presented the Place Draft Business Plan 2019 – 2020 which 
included information with regard to the following – 
 
� Salford Growth Context 

o GVA £5bn set to double in the next decade 
o Fastest growing economy in Manchester 

 
� Place annual outputs 

 
� Place vision 

o ‘Serving Salford’ 
 

� Place strategic priorities 
 

� Place budgets 
o Capital Budget 2019-2020 
o Revenue Budgets 2019-2020 
o Reduction in expenditure over the last 6 years (£21.975m) 

 
� Draft business action plan 

o Tackling Poverty & Inequality 
o Economic Development 
o Housing 
o Transport 

Page 45



2 

 

 
� How we will manage this 

o Risks 
o Performance measures 
o Finance 
o Workforce 

 
� Place performance indicators / measures 
 
� Place senior leadership structure 
 
� Teams to deliver this 

 
It was indicated that the document provided a high level overview and was intended to be a fluid, 
working progress document that could be adapted as situations changed and new opportunities 
arose.  Some Members expressed concern regarding a lack of detail included in the plan.  They also 
expressed confusion regarding the purpose of the document due to it containing both high level 
aspirations and measurable targets.  Other Members felt that the level of the document was 
appropriate, providing the opportunity for the Panel to select items that they would like to consider in 
more detail.   

 
It was suggested that the document was more of a strategic plan, or programme overview, rather 
than a business plan and that it would be useful for an introduction to be included explaining its 
purpose and indicating that it related to a much longer timeframe than that of the reporting period.  
Reference was made to the priorities included within the document and it was suggested that links to 
the relevant strategies, containing information regarding targets and key milestones, be included. 

 
Further discussion took place which included reference to the following – 
 
� With regard to Place Strategic Priorities (page 6), it was suggested that ForViva be included 

within the final bullet point. 
 

� With regard to Place Budgets (page 7), it was indicated that the Panel would continue to receive 
budget monitoring reports on a regular basis. 
 

� With regard to Transport, a suggestion that reference be made to the North West Quadrant 
Study.  Councillor Antrobus believed the current wording to be sufficiently comprehensive – 
‘Continue to work with TfGM, GMCA, Highways England and bus and rail operators to support 
the creation of a fully integrated public transport system, reducing the need for interchange, 
improving journey time reliability and supporting healthier travel.  This includes the development 
of capacity on our Metrolink and rail systems as well as enhancing bus travel, while recognising 
the importance of maintaining and making best use of our local roads and strategic highways.’  
He indicated that he would discuss the matter with Councillor Jones. 

 
� The inclusion of the services currently provided by Urban Vision that would be returning to the 

Council in the future.  It was indicated that the document would be reviewed on a continuous 
basis with additional services being incorporated as required. 

 
� With regard to the provision of new homes, it was suggested that consideration be given to how 

progress in terms of deliverability could be mapped through this process.  It was indicated that 
this would be covered by the Housing Strategy and Action Plan.  Andrew Leigh, Head of 
Housing, would be attending a future meeting of the Panel with a report on the delivery of 
affordable housing and a draft Housing Strategy for the city was currently being worked on.   
 

� With regard to economic development, it was suggested that a reference to town centre 
regeneration/investment be included. 

 

Page 46



3 

 

� The impacts of high growth as a result of investment that is brought into the city in terms of 
population growth leading to more pressure and reliance on services.  Benefits to the Council 
included increased planning fee income and Section 106 contributions.  Reference was made to 
the quarterly reports circulated to all Members in respect of Section 106 contributions. 

 
RESOLVED:  (1) THAT the content of the document and the above discussion be noted with 
thanks to Kurt Partington and Sarah Ashurst for their attendance. 

 
(2) THAT consideration be given to (a) the inclusion of an introduction within 

the document setting out its purpose and indicating that it relates to a much longer timeframe than 
that of the reporting period, and (b) the priorities within the document including links to the relevant 
strategies containing targets and key milestones. 

 
4. SERVICE GROUP PRIORITIES TO INFORM WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2019/20 
 

Following the presentation received in respect of Item 3 (Place Business Plan), it was agreed that the 
Chair and Deputy Chair would liaise with officers with a view to a Draft Work Programme being 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the information be noted. 

 
5. ITEMS FOR INFORMATION – TOWER BLOCK FIRE SAFETY 
 

An update regarding Tower Block Fire Safety was submitted to the Panel together with a response to 
issues that had been raised by Mr. Langton. 
 
Discussion took place during which reference was made to – 
 
- A request for a firm indication to be provided as to when the removal/replacement of the cladding 

would be taking place in respect of each of the blocks. 
 
- A request for a date to be provided as to when the installation of sprinklers was to commence. 
 
RESOLVED:THAT the items for information be noted and responses be sought in respect of the 
above matters. 

 
6. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the minutes of the meeting held on 20th May 2019 be approved as a correct 
record, and the minutes of the meeting held on 24th June 2019 be included on the agenda for 
consideration at the next meeting. 
 

7. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
RESOLVED: THAT the date of the next meeting be moved to Monday 30 September 2019, 6:00 p.m. 
(Briefing for Panel Members at 5:30 p.m.) 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME SEPTEMBER 2019 TO JUNE 2020

Date (meetings to 
commence at 6.00pm)

Agenda Item(s) Lead Officer(s)

30 September 2019  Salford’s Growing Business Base 

 Urban Vision Transition Update 

Bernie Vaudrey/Justin Bentham

Nina Howells/Shoaib Mohammad

28 October 2019  GMSF and Local Plan Update

 Delivery of Affordable Homes

Chris Findley

Andrew Leigh/Mark Hart

25 November 2019  Bi-annual Place Performance Monitoring

 Highways, Highways Drainage, Culvert & Crash Barrier Investment Programmes 
2019/20 

Item for Information
 Development Update – The Quays & MediaCityUk

Sarah Ashurst

Steve Mangan

December 2019 No Meeting

27 January 2020  Revenue & Budget 2019/20 Budget Monitoring 

 Salford’s Approach to Climate Change 

Paul Hutchings/Sarah Ashurst

Chris Findley/Will Horsfall

24 February 2020  Salford Crescent and University Masterplan – Partner Update 

Item for Information
 Development Update – City Centre Salford

Kurt Partington

23 March 2020  Homelessness Update 

 Derive Update 

Andrew Leigh/Janice Lowndes

Andrew Leigh

April 2020 No Meeting

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 9



2

May 2020 (Date TBC)  Mayor’s Cycling & Walking Challenge Fund Scheme Prioritisation and Bidding Update

Items for Information
 Greater Manchester Western Gateway
 Bridgewater Canal Update
 RHS Bridgewater Update

Shoaib Mohammad

22 June 2020  Place End of Year Performance Update Sarah Ashurst

Abeyance List
 Salix Homes – Review of Stock Transfer Agreement
 City West/ForViva Progress Update
 Greening the City (Greenspace Strategy/City of Trees)/Carbon Reduction Management

Portfolio of the Board: Membership (12 Members):

1. Physical regeneration
2. Business investment and programmes
3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery
4. Pendleton PFI
5. Urban Vision
6. Housing: (Citywest, Salix client and private)
7. Environmental sustainability
8. Climate change
9. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood 

authority
10. To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional 

area.

Councillor August (VC)
Councillor Critchley
Councillor Dickman
Councillor R. Garrido
Councillor Hesling
Councillor Jolley
Councillor Lewis
Councillor Nkurunziza
Councillor Sharpe (C)
Councillor Ward
Councillor Weir
Councillor M. Wheeler

P
age 50



1

Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel

Fire Safety Update 30th September 2019

Works Progress 

Steps are being taken to procure contractors to carry out the identified fire safety 
works, with works already started in the common areas to the blocks   

Progress to date includes:  
 Plane Court cladding removed.  (NB.  Residents have been compensated for 

any increase in fuel bills).
 SCC committed to and identified resources to install sprinklers on the blocks.  
 Argus a company who specialise in the installation of sprinklers have been 

selected to complete the sprinkler design and initial feasibility is now 
complete. 

 Trueline have been appointed to complete works to the fire doors on all blocks 
and orders for the first replacement doors have been placed and are due to 
be installed w/c 21st October.

 Fieldway have been appointed to upgrade individual heat sensors / alarms in 
resident’s flats.

 Jacobs have been surveying resident’s flats and common areas on Spruce 
Court for the internal works programme.

 PTOL have employed a new Resident Liaison Team to help support residents 
through the work.

PTOL are procuring contractors to carry out the main cladding and internal works.  A 
programme is not concluded and has not been shared with SCC.  

Interim Fire Safety Measures

All interim fire safety measures introduced post Grenfell including the fire marshals 
remain in place until the works are complete.

Communications with Residents

Residents are kept up to date of progress through regular newsletters, social media 
updates and home visits. PTOL have employed a new Resident Liaison Team to 
help support residents through the work 

Fire Risk Assessments (FRAs)

Fire Risk Assessments are produced annually for Pendleton Together.  Pendleton 
Together have published tenant friendly versions of FRAs, a link to which is included 
here https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/fire-safety-advice/fire-risk-assessments/
and full versions are available for residents on request.

Fire Evacuation Procedures
Copies of the Fire Evacuation procedure and evacuation notices displayed in blocks.  
Resident communications regularly remind residents of these messages.

Page 51

Agenda Item 10a

https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/fire-safety-advice/fire-risk-assessments/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Growth and prosperity meeting 30th september 2019 

 
 
I am very disappointed that the panel is still being misled the same 
as the residents of Salford. On 16th Sept 2019 I had a visit from 
Miele who Pendleton Together have hired to look at issues with 
windows in our properties. Correct me if I am wrong, but he had a 
list for approx 200 jobs to assess. He was tasked with assessing 32 
jobs a day. To my knowledge after speaking with neighbours today 
a minimum of 3 flats on my block alone where assessed for faulty 
windows today. This is contrary to information that Pendleton 
Together have told the panel. Previously I have raised the 
problems with windows with the panel. This new information now 
backs up my claim there are serious issues with the windows and 
the panel needs to fully investigate. My own window needs to be 
re – geared which takes 2 men and over an hr to do. Also my 
window sill needs replacing. Several months ago Mayor Paul 
Dennett visited my flat to witness my issues with my window. I 
still do not know when the issues with my window and sill will be 
resolved? Residents on Malus can not reach to open windows in 
the kitchens. What have Pendleton Together done? Visited flats 
telling residents they can only open windows on vent and not in 
the way they are designed. If residents ignore Pendleton Together 
and open windows as designed and given the faults they break. 
Residents will be charged the cost. This is not right nor is it legal. 
The windows are designed to open. Also it could hamper escape in 
case of fire? Also I have (1) key for all my windows to open. This 
could also hamper my escape if a fire occurs and I need to use the 
window for escape. Councillor Garrido told me several months 
ago he would visit myself and see 1st hand the issues we have with 
the windows. As yet no contact to me or visit has happened? It 
seems everytime I raise issues with the Mayor and councillors we 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10b



as residents are being ignored and our safety at risks. I am now 
asking for the Growth and Prosperity panel to take these issues 
seriously and come and visit our properties and the dangers we 
live in. We would also like to know when the removal of cladding 
begins as residents have been informed work begins in Sept 2019. 
Yet no signs of work begining ? No works plan? No confirmation 
if the new materials to replace cladding is in place? Has the new 
loan of £30 million has been signed off? There are strong rumours 
some blocks of flats will be demolished to pay the loans off? As 
the cost for fire marshalls is rising to nearly £3million at a cost of 
£25 thousand a week. How can this cost be over looked and what 
will be the predicted cost by the end of the cladding removed? 
Residents have a right to know answers. 

 
Yours sincerely 
 
Graeme Langton & Salford residents. 

 
 

Page 54



Responses to written queries from Mr Langton submitted to Scrutiny Chair 30th September 
2019. 
 
Responses to the issues around windows have been provided to panel on several 
occasions.  This has included information on the accountability of the Pendleton Together 
repairs service and customer complaints process that should be followed if an individual 
tenant is unhappy with the service they receive.  This is overseen by the Housing 
Ombudsman. 
 
The responses provided as part of the July queries outline the action Pendleton Together 
has taken to investigate and address any faults.  The advice provided on the safe operation 
of the windows follows the manufacturer’s guidance.  All residents are being visited by the 
Resident Liaison Team and a range of repairs are being reported during these visits.  This 
includes additional repairs to windows and a number of other items.   Following July’s 
responses Mr Langton has been visited and repairs carried out.  Mr Langton has not 
complained to Pendleton Together about the repairs. 
 
Panel will be aware that the council takes the safety of its tenants very seriously.  Following 
the fire at Grenfell the council made available a £25m loan to enable the required works to 
be carried out.  Unfortunately the government confirmed that it would not be possible to loan 
to the project in this way and Together Housing are now taking steps to secure the funding 
for the works.  The council have also identified funding to install Sprinklers in all flats on the 
blocks. 
 
Residents are kept up to date of progress through regular newsletters, social media updates 
and home visits. PTOL have also employed a new Resident Liaison Team to help support 
residents through the work.  Copies of the resident newsletters have been provided to the 
Panel. 
 
The latest progress update identifies the work that is underway in the common areas and the 
contact that has been made with residents affected.  It was anticipated that work to the 
cladding would begin in the autumn.  Whilst no programme for the cladding removal is 
available it is now anticipated that this will begin early in the new year. 
 
There are no plans to demolish the blocks and the council are committed to getting the 
required fire safety works carried out including the installation of Sprinklers.  The completion 
of this work will allow the fire marshals to be stood down for the blocks. 
 
Responses provided to written queries submitted to July Scrutiny Panel  
 
Windows (July Response) 
 
The statement made about Councillor Merry’s comments on windows is inaccurate. 
Pendleton Together and the council originally responded to issues you raised on windows 
after a Scrutiny meeting in October 2018.   Here you allege that windows were faulty and a 
window had fallen out onto the ground.  It was reported that there had not been any reports 
of windows having fallen out onto the ground.  It was also reported to the same meeting that 
a programme of repair to identified faults on windows was due to commence on 22nd 
October 2018.  An investigation into the reasons behind the faults was still in progress at this 
time. 
 
Following this investigation Pendleton Together are visiting all residents to provide them with 
advice as to the safe operation of the windows fitted as they are designed to open.  This 
includes advice to keep the windows in the tilt mode and it has been confirmed that the 
windows meet building regulations with regards to airflow and provide adequate ventilation in 

Page 55



the tilt position.   The information that is being provided to residents has been shared with 
Scrutiny committee and regular updates were provided to residents in the newsletters. 
 
Accountability of Pendleton Together on repairs and maintenance (July Response)
  
 
The queries raised by Mr Langton relate to the repairs service carried out by Pendleton 
Together on behalf of the council.  If tenants have queries about repairs they can contact 
Pendleton Together at Brotherton house, by telephone (0300 555 5567) or through the web 
site https://www.pendletontogether.co.uk/.  There is no record of Mr Langton making 
enquiries about the repairs to Pendleton Together.   
 
All repair issues raised have been passed to Pendleton Together.  If Mr Langton or any other 
tenants are not happy with the service received by Pendleton Together they should first 
follow the complaints procedure. 
 
Mr Langton also makes enquiries about repairs to other tenant’s homes.  The council or 
Pendleton Together cannot share information with Mr Langton regarding other tenancies. 
 
Whilst the council is not aware of every individual repair jobs they do regularly scrutinise 
repairs performance.  Performance of the PFI contract is monitored monthly with the 
contractor and repairs performance is part of this.   
 
Additional scrutiny of Pendleton Together’s performance is also carried out by customers.  
The customer assembly regularly review different service areas including repairs 
performance and carry out independent exercises scrutinising performance including 
mystery shopping. 
 
The issues around windows have been reported back to scrutiny committee on several 
occasions.  Two glass balconies have shattered and Pendleton Together has demonstrated 
they have taken appropriate steps to make the properties safe and investigate the causes of 
the faults.  Specialist window contractors concluded that the most likely cause of the glass 
breaking was vandalism.  The statements Mr Langton alleges are made by Tom Miskell 
about windows have been refuted by Mr Miskell 
 
 
 

Page 56


	Agenda
	3 Business in Salford, (a) Overview of the Business Base - key data and headlines, and (b) Results & Highlights from 2018-19 Business Support Activity (To follow).
	6 Urban Vision - Overview of the Business Continuity Contract, Budget Planning and Workforce Considerations.
	Report Urban Vision Transition 300919

	8 Minutes of proceedings.
	9 Draft Workplan.
	10a Tower Block Safety Update Note.
	10b Response to issues raised by Mr. Langton

